








July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 11

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, JULY 2, 2019
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck

Absent: Gratton Miller
Ian Montgomery
Tera Hooiman.

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

June 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*No action was taken on this item

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

3. Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 5-19,
filed by Bailey & Associates, LLC, to designate APN 001-926-111 as a RMH-1



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 11

district for occupancy of mobile homes on rented or leased sites in mobile home
parks, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally at the northerly terminus of Primrose Lane
and Daisy Dr. (APN 001-926-111).

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained that the applicant asked that this item be
postponed to the next meeting, so he could prepare some additional exhibits.  There were people
present in the audience for comment and they were told how they could give comments.

Chairman Jeff Dalling said the best way to comment is to email their comments to Michele or
the City Planner, and Michele’s email address was provided.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager asked if the continuation was at the request of the
applicant. (Yes)

Chairman Dalling called for public comment without a response.

***Motion: Table Conditional Use Permit No. 5-19 to the August 6th Planning Commission
meeting.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone
No. 2-19, filed by Bailey & Associates LLC, for a change in zoning from PQP
(Public, Quasi-Public) to R1 (Single Family Residential) zoning district,
approximately 8.02 acres of property, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is generally located on the northeast corner of the intersection
of Celtic Way and El Armuth Drive. (APN 001-660-041)

Nitin Bhakta, 1150 Lamoille Highway, said he was representing Bailey & Associates and he was
available to answer any questions.

Ms. Rambo explained the project and gave a presentation. (Exhibit A)

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, recommended approval with no additional comments or concerns.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, had no comments or concerns.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which
approves Rezone No. 2-19 based on the facts and findings as presented in the Staff Report
dated June 11, 2019.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 11

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed zone district is in
conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed zone district
is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan and is consistent with
the existing transportation infrastructure. The property is not located within the
Redevelopment Area. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance
with the City Wellhead Protection Plan. The proposed zone district is in conformance with
Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B). The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko
City Code Section 3-2-5(B) and (G). The application is in conformance with Elko City Code
3-2-21. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).
The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA). The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses. Development
under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems, or
public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

2. Review and consideration of Tentative Map No. 7-19, filed by Bailey &
Associates, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Cambridge Estates
involving the proposed division of approximately 8.02 acres of property into 35
lots for residential development within the R1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning
District, in conjunction with a zone change application, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northeast corner of the intersection
of Celtic Way and El Armuth Drive. (APN 001-660-041)

Mr. Bhakta said this was discussed with staff and he thought everything had been worked out.

Mindy Beckstead, 1513 Connolly Drive, said her daughter and son-in-law live on Clover Hills
Dr. She was concerned with the traffic being brought in with the proposed additional 35 homes.
She mentioned that there was already a lot of traffic, and that there are kids in that neighborhood.
She wanted an explanation on how this was going to be safe for the public and families in the
neighborhood.

Ms. Rambo explained the Tentative Map with a presentation. (Exhibit B)

Mr. Thibault brought up a copy of the Tentative Map that everyone could see and pointed out the
lots that had shorter frontages, and the lots that didn’t meet the minimum size requirements for
corner lots. Mr. Thibault then went over his conditions, which were included in the City of Elko
Staff Report dated June 18, 2019.

Mr. Holmes had no concerns.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 11

Mr. Wilkinson had a couple of comments. Staff believes that the Modification of Standards is
justified. Quite a large area is being lost to storm water controls in the upper right corner.
Conformance with the Flood Control Ordinance requires a loss of property there. Staff believes
that since they are large lots that there is more than enough buildable area on what is proposed.
He also wanted to talk a little bit about traffic. Initially the property was proposed to be a school
site. There would have been a tremendous amount of traffic, not only on Celtic, but on Jennings
as well. There aren’t a whole lot of lots that front Celtic, so you don’t have a lot of pedestrians
from the lots interfacing with Celtic. A couple things will happen with this property being
rezoned to an R1. There won’t be any multi-family development there, it will only be single-
family homes. From a zoning perspective the zone change from PQP to R1 is the best outcome
for development of this property. The number of lots conforms with the City Code. He thought a
lot of the lots were actually larger in area than the minimum standard. The proposed lot layout
results in less traffic that what could be designed. From a traffic perspective, with the vacant
areas of the City being developed, there will be some additional traffic. There is also a vacant
property across the street that will be developed into a residential subdivision. If there are issues
with speeding, or other traffic infractions, those are issues to take up with the Police Department;
those aren’t issues that can be controlled through an approval of a subdivision. Mr. Wilkinson
recommended a conditional approval as presented by staff.

Katie Lemmon, 1534 Celtic Way, complained that she has a lot of people coming down her
street and has to wait to back out of her driveway. She said it would be nice to see another way in
and out of the neighborhood.

Vant Stevens, 1707 Celtic Way, agreed that there is a lot of traffic on Celtic Way.  There are a
lot of kids playing out there. Her other concern was if there was enough water to support 35
more houses. Sometimes their water pressure is really low.  A couple of years ago there was a
rain storm and the storm drain filled up.

Mr. Thibault said the water pressure is fairly high at 80 psi. There is enough water to serve all of
the undeveloped properties in the City. As far as the traffic, Celtic Way is designated as a minor
collector, which is intended to carry a significant amount of traffic. It is unfortunate that the
previous subdivisions were designed with driveways out to Celtic, which wouldn’t be allowed in
a newer subdivision design.

Lee Stevens, 1707 Celtic Way, explained when his house was built up there it was all dirt road.
The City came in a put a cold cap on top of the dirt road. He asked if the asphalt could sustain
the additional traffic. In the winter months the traffic coming up El Armuth tracks mud down
Celtic Way. He has two or three inches of mud where people come around the corner. He wanted
to know who would keep the street clean.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that during construction the developer is responsible for maintaining
their track out onto Celtic Way. The existing street is the responsibility of the Street Department
to maintain. There will be some street improvements to a limited degree on the frontage. If for
some reason the street were to start degrading, it will go onto a list and the Street Department
will have to repair it at some point in the future. The traffic out El Armuth is a County issue.
Staff can talk to the County about their traffic and how they might control that.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 11

Mr. Stevens said the county doesn’t claim that road, neither does the City. The Fire Department
considers it a fire break.  He asked for a stop sign to slow people down.  The sign is faded out.
He wanted to see that improved. Traffic is going to increase.  He doesn’t want El Armuth to
become a main fairway from the freeway to Mountain City Highway.

Mr. Wilkinson said explained that the way this section was mapped, El Armuth is an individual
parcel that is owned by someone. The connectivity of El Armuth to Mountain City Highway
won’t occur, because there was a revision to the Master Plan to remove that connection. With the
approval of this subdivision there is no condition that could be put on the approval that would
address any traffic from the County.

Mr. Stevens was concerned that there was only one mailbox, and wondered where the new
houses would be getting their mail.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that there would be a gang box within the new subdivision.

Commissioner Beck thanked everyone for the explanation.  He hears the traffic concerns but he
felt that would be minimal because of the newer design. He asked if traffic would become more
of an issue if more properties were to develop.

Mr. Wilkinson pointed out that all the properties in the County surrounding the subject property
had been developed already. There are only two vacant properties down on El Armuth, but Mr.
Wilkinson thought they were bought by an individual who lives on Sundance. Whether or not
those develop remains to be seen. If any County development were to occur with any type of
density, there is a communication policy in affect with the County where they would have to
notify the City.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Tentative
Map No. 7-19 based on facts, findings, and conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report
dated June 18, 2019, listed as follows:

1. Rezone 2-19 must be approved by the City Council and all conditions be met.
2. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to

the proposed subdivision.
3. Tentative Ma approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with

preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.
4. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site

improvements, with the exception of authorized grading, prior to approval of the
construction plans by the City and the State.

5. The applicant submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years
in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a). Approval of the Tentative Map will
automatically lapse at that time.

6. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.
7. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.
8. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City Code.
9. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City

Code.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 11

10. The Utility Department will issue and Intent to Serve Letter upon approval of the
Tentative Map by the City Council.

11. A Modification of Standards approved by City Council for Lots 7-10, 13 and 14 to
have reduced frontage widths.

12. A Modification of Standards approved by City Council for Lots 29 and 35 to have
reduced square-footages.

13. Prior to being scheduled for a City Council hearing, the Tentative Map shall be
modified as follows:

a. Remove the word “easement” from the description of the dedicated land
along the eastern side of the subdivision and instead show this area as a
separate parcel to be dedicated to the City of Elko similar to the street,
detention pond, and sewer dedications.

b. Remove the residential lot property lines within the dedicated are described
above.

c. Adjust the building setback line to reflect the correct rear property line.
d. Recalculate the lot areas to eliminate the dedicated area.
e. Revise the buildable area of the lots to reflect the correct rear property line.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed subdivision and
development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed subdivision and development does not
conflict with the Airport Master Plan. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the
City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. The proposed
subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Program.
The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system. A zoning amendment is required and
has been submitted to the Planning Department to change the property zoning from Public,
Quasi-Public (PQP) to Single Family Residential (R1). In accordance with Section 3-3-
5(E)(2), the proposed subdivision and development will not result in undue water or air
pollution based on the following: a) There are no obvious considerations or concerns which
indicate the proposed subdivision would not be in conformance with all applicable
environmental and health laws and regulations. b) There is adequate capacity within the
City’s water supply to accommodate the proposed subdivision. c) The proposed subdivision
and development will not create an unreasonable burden on the existing water system. d)
There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the proposed
subdivision and development. e) The proposed subdivision and development will be
connected to the City’s programmed sanitary sewer system. Therefore, the ability of soils
to support waste disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval. f)
Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development. g) Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout
the community. h) With the approval of the associated Modification of Standards
regarding lots 7-10, 13, and 14, the proposed subdivision and development is in
conformance with applicable zoning ordinances and is in conformance with the Master
Plan. i) The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets. j) The area is



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 11

not located within a designated flood zone. Concentrated storm water runoff has been
addressed as shown on the grading plan. k) The proposed subdivision and development is
not expected to result in unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water-holding capacity of
the land thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition. The proposed subdivision
submittal is in conformance with Section 3-3-6 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in
conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance
with Section 3-3-10 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section
3-3-11 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of
City Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City Code
with the approval of a Modification of Standards to front width requirements for 7-10, 13,
14, 29, and 35. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City
Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City Code. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City Code.
The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City
Code. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-
5(B)(2). Conformance with Section 3-2-5(B) is required as the subdivision develops. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
Code with the approval of the Modification of Standards to the front width requirements
for 7-10, 13, 14, 29, and 35. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance
with Section 3-2-17. Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision
develops. The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated flood
hazard area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code. The proposed subdivision
design shall conform to Title 9, Chapter 8 of City Code.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

Chairman Dalling explained that the public had the right to appeal if they weren’t happy with the
decision.

Mr. Wilkinson added that this item would also have a public hearing in front of the City Council.

4. Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-19,
Ordinance No. 842, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically
Section 3-2-3 General Provisions, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

At the May 7, 2019 meeting, Planning Commission took action to initiate an
amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 3; General
Provisions.

Ms. Rambo explained the request and gave a presentation. (Exhibit C)

Mr. Thibault had nothing to add.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 11

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an Ordinance, which
approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1-19 of the Elko City Code, specifically
Section 3-2-3.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Final Map No. 8-19, filed by
Copper Trails, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Copper Trails
Phase 2 – Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 19.194 acres of
property into 9 lots and 1 remainder parcel for residential development within the
R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located at the intersection of Copper Street and Mittry
Avenue. (APN 001-610-114)

Ms. Rambo explained the final map and gave a presentation. (Exhibit D)

Mr. Thibault said Engineering had one condition that was already addressed and recommended
approval.

Mr. Holmes recommended approval.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Recommended that the City Council accept, on behalf of the public, the parcels
of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with the terms of the offer of
dedication; that the final map substantially complies with the tentative map; that the City
Council approve the agreement to install improvements in accordance with the approved
construction plans that satisfies the requirements of this Chapter, and conditionally
approve Final Map 8-19 with conditions listed in the Staff Report dated June 12, 2019,
listed as follows:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section
3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance
with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of City code,
the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2)
years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of
approval of the Final Map by the City Council.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 11

4. The Final Map for Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1 is approved for nine (9) single
family residential lots.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Construction, with the exception of grading, shall not commence prior to Final Map
approval by the City Council, issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko, and
approval of construction plans by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection.

7. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

8. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the
qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with
the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal
to the City of Elko.  The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest
edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works.  All right-of-way and utility
improvements are to be certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the Final Map for Copper Trails
Phase 2, Unit 1 has been presented before expirations of the subdivision proceedings in
accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Map is in conformance
with the Tentative Map. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. Based on Modification of Standards for lot
dimensions granted under the Tentative Map application, the proposed development
conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive). The subdivider shall be
responsible for all required improvements in conformance with Section 3-3-17 of City
Code. The subdivider has submitted plans to the City and State agencies for review to
receive all required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City
Code. The subdivider has submitted construction plans, which having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City Code, have been approved by City Staff. The
Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to Section
3-3-21 of City Code. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee
as stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
Code. Based on the Modification of Standards for lot dimensions granted under the
Tentative Map application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-
2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of City Code. The proposed development is in conformance
with Section 3-8 of City Code.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by John Anderson.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation
No. 3-19, filed by David and Juliane Ernst, for the vacation of the northeasterly



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 11

portion of 3rd Street, consisting of an area approximately 900 sq. ft., and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northeast side of 3rd Street,
approximately 36’ southeast of Pine Street. (604 3rd Street- APN 001-224-009)

Ms. Rambo explained the vacation with a presentation. (Exhibit E)

Mr. Thibault recommended approval. He explained that there are 80 foot rights-of-way in the
tree streets, which is quite excessive for a neighborhood street. The City often vacates 10 feet
from either side.

Mr. Holmes had no comments or concerns.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which
conditionally approves Vacation No. 3-19, based on the facts, findings, and conditions in
the City of Elko Staff Report dated June 11, 2019, listed as follows:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the
vacation.

2. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with
regard to the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is
recorded.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed vacation is in
conformance with the City of Elko Master plan Land Use Component. The proposed
vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation Component.
The property proposed for vacation is not located within the Redevelopment Area. The
proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive. The proposed
vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Elko City Code 8-7. The
proposed vacation will not materially injure the public and is in the best interest of the
City.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Rambo reported that the Great Basin Estates Phase 3 final map and performance
agreement was finally approved.  The 2018 International Building and Fire Codes were
adopted.



July 2, 2019 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 11

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Rambo explained that a power point on ethics was included in their packet. Also the
2019 State American Planning Association Conference was going to be in Sparks in
October.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created on 6/18/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 5-

19, filed by Bailey & Associates LLC., to designate APN 001-926-111 as a RMH-1 

zoning district for occupancy of mobile homes on rented or leased sites in mobile 

home parks, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 6, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Bailey & Associates is proposing a mobile home park 

development on the subject property which has previously had CUP approval for an 

RMH-2 designation as well as tentative map approval. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Deny Conditional Use Permit 5-19 based on the facts and 

findings as presented in Staff Report dated June 18, 2019 
 

If Planning Commission recommends approval staff will provide a list of suggested 

conditions 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated June 18, 2019 and additional memo dated July 26, 

2019. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bailey & Associates. LLC 

780 West Silver Street #104 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com 

 

 

 

mailto:jbaileype@gmail.com




Memorandum
To: Elko Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin – City Planner
Date: July 26, 2019
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, August 6, 2016

RE: CUP 5-19 Bailey & Associates

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 5-19,
filed by Bailey & Associates, LLC, to designate APN 001-926-111 as a RMH-1
district for occupancy of mobile homes on rented or leased sites in mobile home
parks, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Planning Commission tabled the agenda item at their meeting July 2, 2019. There were a list
of deficiencies that needed to be included with the application in order to consider it a complete
application.  Since that meeting, Bailey & Associates has included answers to questions staff had
regarding the application as well as the following new items:

 Revised site plan showing the preliminary landscaping proposed for the project including the
fence to screen the property, landscaping and pavilion in the proposed park, and trees
included along the perimeter fence.

 Design for the proposed signage for the park.  The sign location is also noted on the site plan.
 The site plan includes the plan view location of the solid view screening decorative fence.

Also, a copy of the proposed decorative fencing (vinyl) and an elevation showing the fencing
in conjunction with the proposed trees located along the perimeter of the fence as shown on
the site plan.

 There are no non-mobile home facilities/offices planned with this project.
 A detail of the trash enclosure.
 There are no other non-mobile home structures planned with this project.

City of Elko
Planning Department
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160



Page 1 of 14

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: June 18, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: July 2, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 5-19
APPLICANT: Bailey & Associates LLC.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Terminus of Daisy Drive and Primrose Ln.

The property owner is proposing a mobile home park on the RMH zoned property. The
property doesn’t have a specific designation of RMH-1 and therefore the CUP is required to
designate the zoning RMH-1.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND DENIAL, subject to findings of facts as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 2 of 14

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-926-111

PROPERTY SIZE: 7.31 acres

EXISTING ZONING: RMH – Residential Mobile Home

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by developed land to the south with both RMH-1 and RMH-3,
Residential Mobile Home 1 & 3, LI- Light Industrial undeveloped land to the west, GI-
General Industrial developed land to the east and Elko County property to the north which
is developed as residential.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently undeveloped.
The property has generally moderate slope.
The property will be accessed from Primrose Lane and Daisy Drive.
The property is not in the floodway and flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-5 Mobile Home Parks, Mobile Home, Manufactured Home

Subdivisions and Recreational Vehicle Parks
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

Background Information
 The application for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) was filed as required under City

Code 3-5-1.
 The area is currently zoned RMH, Residential Mobile Home.
 The area is located at the terminus of Daisy Drive and Primrose Lane



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 3 of 14

 The proposed area was previously approved a CUP 4-96 for a designation of RMH-2 for a
mobile home subdivision. This approval was in conjunction with the Tentative Map 4-96
for Phase 1.

 A Tentative Map 4-96 was approved by City Council for Phase 1, on June 11, 1996.  The
conditions set by Planning Commission stated that all mobile/manufactured home
dwelling units constructed within the subdivision shall be placed on permanent
foundations. The CUP 4-96 qualified the approval as an RMH-2 subdivision. The subject
parcel in the proposed CUP was not included in the Final Map approved in 1996. The only
properties developed with that approval were those along Primrose Lane to Larkspur Ct.

 A new Tentative Map 3-14 was approved by City Council for Phase 2 (Daisy Drive) and
Phase 3 (subject parcel) on May 27, 2014.

 A Final Map was approved by City Council for Phase 2 on June 10, 2014. Phase 2 was
constructed and final acceptance by City Council on October 28, 2014. The Final Map for
Phase 2 was recorded on 10/30/2014. The Final Map for Phase 3 was not recorded in
accordance with the NRS and all proceedings and approvals for the subdivision have
expired.

 The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. Supporting zone districts for Medium Density Residential are Single Family/Multi Family

(R), Single Family (R1), Two Family (R2), Planned Unit Development (PUD), Residential
Office (RO), Residential Business (RB), Mobile Home Subdivision (RMH-2), and
Manufactured Home Subdivision (RMH-3).

3. RMH – Mobile Home Residential is a supporting zone district for the Residential High
Density which are densities of nine (9) units per acre or greater. The proposed
development consists of 44 units which would be a density of 6.01 units per acre. The
proposed density is consistent with the Residential Medium Density designation of 4-8
units per acre.

4. High Density Residential is the City’s most intensive residential land use designation. This
classification is intended for multiple-family homes and multistory dwellings in addition
to single- family residences. This land use category serves as a transitional land use
between medium-density residential, and commercial or industrial uses.  High density
residential is also appropriate along major transportation corridors, in the downtown core
and near neighborhood centers.

5. Uses of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, this Master Plan’s goals and policies.

6. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

7. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

8. Although the proposed development meets Objectives 1 and 8, the Master Plan doesn’t
address location of development in the objectives.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 4 of 14

The proposed RMH-1 is not in conformance with the Master Plan. The proposed development is
in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan based on meeting Objectives 1
& 8 and is consistent with the density requirements of Medium Density Residential. The proposed
development is not in conformance with the Land Use Component as RMH is listed as a
corresponding zoning district for High Density Residential. The proposed development does not
meet the density requirements for High Density Residential. Additionally, we are placing a high
density use between city medium density and very low density in the county which is in
inconsistent with the Transportation component of the Master Plan.
Transportation

1. The area will be accessed from Primrose Lane and Daisy Drive.
2. Primrose Lane and Daisy Drive are not classified in the Transportation Component, but

would function as a Residential Local Street.
3. With 100% occupancy, the proposed development is expected to generate approximately

421 Average Daily Trips based on 9.57 trips/townhome (Source ITE trip Generation, 8th
Edition). Ingress/Egress to the subdivision will be split between Daisy Drive and Primrose
Lane. The previously approved Tentative Map showed 30 dwelling units which would
generate approximately 287 average daily trips. The proposed development results in an
increase of 133 average daily trips. High density residential is appropriate along major
transportation corridors.

The Transportation Component of the Master Plan states that concentrations of high density
residential development should be provided along a minor arterial route. The proposed
development is not in conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

 A portion of the property is located within the 30-year capture zone for City of Elko well.
 The proposed development would be connected to the City’s programmed sanitary sewer

system.

The proposed development under the conditional use permit and resultant land use is in
conformance with wellhead protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

 Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 5 of 14

 Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is
held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing the
particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to
present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she so desires,
whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of
unsuitability.”

The proposed designation of RMH-1 is required to have an approval as a conditional use as
required in ECC 3-5-1. Planning Commission is to determine that the proposed designation is in
conformance with 3-2-3(D) and is a suitable use for the land.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The proposed use is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

 Conformance with this section is required. Off street parking will be required to comply
with 3-2-17 as the property develops.

The proposed use conforms to section 3-2-17 of Elko city code.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 6 of 14

the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

SECTION 3-5 MOBILE HOME PARKS, MOBILE HOME, MANUFACTURED HOME
SUBDIVISIONS AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKS

3-5-1: Intent: Within selected geographical areas that are designated for mobile homes on the city
general plan map, adopted by the city council on January 15, 1974, or zoned RMH on the zoning
map, the city council, through conditional use permits, after review by the planning commission,
may regulate by districting, the proposed mobile home residential use, manufactured home
residential use, and recreational vehicle parks. When such districts are designated, the provisions
of this chapter shall prevail over any requirements underlying by virtue of the zoning previously
adopted.

3-5-2: Districts:
RMH-1: Areas suitable for development, placement and occupancy of mobile homes for
residential purposes on rented or leased sites in mobile home parks.

3-5-3: Definitions:
MOBILE HOME PARK: A parcel or tract of land having as its principal use the rental, leasing or
occupancy of space by mobile homes on a permanent or semipermanent basis, including
accessory buildings or uses customarily incidental thereto.

3-5-4: Uses Permitted and Minimum Standards: A. Uses Permitted:

Accessory buildings

Community recreation buildings and facilities, laundry, car wash, boat or storage facilities
serving the mobile home or RV park; provided, however, that the architectural design of all
non-mobile home structures shall be subject to approval by the planning commission prior to
issuance of any conditional use permit, and all applicable state and city requirements.

The developer is not proposing any community recreation buildings or facilities.

Management offices (RMH-1 and RMH-4 only). One or more single-family dwellings or
mobile homes used exclusively for office and living quarters by the operator or manager of the
mobile home or RV park. The architectural design of a non-mobile home office shall be subject
to approval by the planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit.

The developer is not proposing any management office on site.

Mobile homes, manufactured homes, RVs. One mobile home, manufactured home or RV per
space, including doublewide or expandable mobile home units.

Residential uses

B. Standards For Development; Requirement:
1. Minimum Overall Area:



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 7 of 14

a. RMH-1: Two (2) acres;

The proposed parcel area is 7.31 acres and meets the requirement of two (2) acres.

3. Maximum Building Height: The height of any building shall in no manner be such as to
create a nuisance or safety hazard for air traffic into and about the Elko Municipal Airport.

The development will be required to comply with the maximum building height.

3. Minimum Net Space Area: Minimum net space area for each mobile home, RV or
manufactured home:

a. RMH-1: Four thousand (4,000) square feet;

The proposed development meets the minimum net space area of 4,000 square feet.

4. Minimum Frontage Width: Minimum mobile home, RV or manufactured home space
frontage width:

a. RMH-1: Forty feet (40');

The proposed area is 7.31 acres and meets the requirement of two (2) acres.

5. Minimum Setback, Public Street: Minimum setback of any building, mobile home, RV or
manufactured home from a bordering public street line is fifteen feet (15'), except that
garages and carports shall be set back twenty feet (20') from the front lot line.

Setbacks are shown on the proposed plan and the developer will be required to comply with
setbacks with the placement of each mobile home..

6. Minimum Setback, Internal Street: Minimum setback from internal street in mobile home
parks is twelve feet (12'), except that garages and carports shall be set back twenty feet (20')
from the front lot line.

Setbacks are shown on the proposed plan and the developer will be required to comply with
setbacks with the placement of each mobile home..

7. Minimum Side, Rear Setbacks, Separations: Minimum side and rear setbacks or separation
for each mobile home, RV or manufactured home lot, where such side and rear does not
border on public or internal streets:

a. RMH-1: Five feet (5') from space side line; seven and one-half feet (71/2') from space
rear line.

Setbacks are shown on the proposed plan and the developer will be required to comply with
setbacks with the placement of each mobile home..

1. Expandable Sections, Separation Requirements: Expandable sections of a mobile home,
manufactured home or RV shall be considered a part of the mobile home, RV or
manufactured home proper for setback or separation requirements.

The developer is proposing mobile homes and not RV’s so this section of code does not apply.

9. Underground Utilities: All utilities shall be placed underground.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 8 of 14

10. Other Statutes And Regulations Applicable: Where applicable, all site preparation,
construction, mobile home, RV and manufactured home installation, utility connections and
occupancy shall be in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada statutes and
regulations of this code and ordinances.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

C. Transportation Systems Requirements
1. Access; Alignment And Grading Of Streets: All mobile home, RV or manufactured home

spaces shall be provided with safe and convenient vehicular access from public or private
streets. Alignment and grading of streets shall be properly adapted to topography.

The developer is proposing a private street through the mobile home park with a public utility
easement. The developer will provide the necessary information on the street construction and
grading in the site construction plans.

2. Street Surfacing: All streets shall have a paved all weather surface approved by the city
engineer and drained in a manner approved by the city engineer.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

3. Paved Curb Section: All streets shall have a paved, back of curb to back of curb section not
less than:

a. RMH-1: Forty two feet (42') in width;

The developer is proposing 42’ in width back of curb to back of curb section.

4. Curb/Gutter Sections; Sidewalk: All streets shall require curb/gutter sections on both sides
and have a five foot (5') paved sidewalk:

a. RMH-1: At least one side of street;

The developer is proposing required curb/gutter sections on both sides of the street and 5’
sidewalks on both sides of the street.

5. Off Street Parking: A minimum of two (2) off street parking spaces per mobile home or
manufactured home space shall be required.

The developer is proposing adequate off street parking spaces for each mobile home.

6. Emergency Vehicular Access: In all districts, adequate provisions for emergency vehicular
access during inclement weather shall be provided on internal streets.

The developer is proposing adequate emergency vehicular access throughout the mobile
home park.

2. Storm Drainage: Adequate storm drainage shall be provided and shall be reviewed by the
city engineer for his approval.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 9 of 14

3. Signs And Lighting: All streets shall be properly signed and lighted. Lighting systems to
be approved by the city engineer.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

D. General Requirements:

1. Paving: All vehicle parking spaces and driveways shall be paved with a hard surface
material.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

2. Recreation Or Open Space Area: The planning commission shall require mobile home and
RV parks to have at least one recreation area or usable open space accessible from all
spaces, the cumulative size of which recreation area shall not be less than:

The developer is proposing one recreational area within the mobile home park.

a. A minimum of two hundred (200) square feet of outdoor recreation area per mobile
home space or fifty (50) square feet per RV site shall be provided, exclusive of required
yards or setback area. The minimum size for any single outdoor recreation area shall be
two thousand four hundred (2,400) square feet in mobile home parks and one thousand
two hundred (1,200) square feet in RV parks, with a minimum width of twenty four feet
(24').

The developer is proposing one 8,800 sq. ft. recreational area within the mobile home
park. 44 spaces at 200 sq. ft. per mobile home would result in 8,800 sq. ft. required.

b. Parks catering to family use shall provide larger recreation areas and adequate
playgrounds. A minimum of three hundred (300) square feet of outdoor recreation area per
mobile home space or seventy five (75) square feet per RV site shall be provided,
exclusive of required yards or setback areas. All recreation areas and landscaping plans
shall be approved prior to issuance of a conditional use permit by the planning
commission.

3. Pedestrianways: When included as additions to required sidewalks, pedestrianways shall
have a minimum width of four feet (4') and shall be surfaced in concrete or hard surface
material.

The developer is not proposing any predestrianways and it doesn’t appear one would be
required.

4. Water Supply: An accessible, adequate, safe and potable supply of water for domestic
purposes shall be provided to each mobile home or manufactured home space or lot and
RV site, and proof of the same shall be provided to the planning commission before
approval of any conditional use permit. Such supply of water shall be in conformance with
any applicable Nevada statutes and regulations and city ordinances, and furnished through
a pipe distribution system directly connected to the city water service.

The developer is proposing connections to the City of Elko water service and meters at each
mobile home site.

5. Sewerage Facilities: An adequate and safe sewer system shall be provided to each mobile
home, manufactured home or RV space, lot or site. Such sewer system shall be in



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 10 of 14

conformance with any applicable Nevada statutes and regulations and city ordinances, and
directly connected through a pipe collection system to the city sewer facilities.

The developer is proposing connections to the City of Elko sewer service at each mobile home
site.

6. Refuse And Garbage: Storage, collection and disposal of garbage and refuse shall be in
conformance with any applicable Nevada statutes and regulations and city ordinances. In
mobile home and RV parks, one metal dumpster with lid per twenty five (25) spaces
located no more than one hundred fifty feet (150') from mobile home lots and RV sites
shall be required.

The developer is proposing two locations of trash collection for the park.

7. Fuel Supply And Storage: Installation of liquid petroleum gas or fuel oil containers within
a mobile home or manufactured home subdivision or mobile home or RV park shall be in
conformance with any applicable Nevada statutes and city ordinances.

8. Fire Protection: In every mobile home or RV park, mobile home subdivision or
manufactured home subdivision, fire hydrants shall be installed as may be required by the
fire department.

The developer is proposing fire hydrants and will be reviewed by the Fire Marshal with the
submittal of the site construction plans.

9. Tie Downs: Tie downs for all mobile homes shall be provided in accordance with state fire
marshal regulations and applicable Nevada statutes and regulations. Tie downs shall not
be required on RV sites.

10. Skirting:

a. Skirting shall be of durable materials suitable for exterior exposures, and be
installed in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. It shall be
secured, as necessary, to assure stability, to minimize vibrations, to minimize
susceptibility to wind damage and to compensate for possible frost heave.

b. If combustion air for heat producing appliance is taken from within the under floor
area, ventilation shall be adequate to assure proper operation of the appliances.

c. Use of combustible material (such as hay, straw, cardboard, etc.) shall be
prohibited.

11. Fences: Mobile home and RV parks adjacent to residential zones shall be fenced with a
solid view screening decorative fence not more than six feet (6') nor less than three feet
(3') in height around the entire boundary of the park. However, no such fence over three
feet (3') in height shall be allowed within thirty feet (30') of the intersection of any two (2)
streets. The design and construction materials of said fence shall be subject to approval by
the planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit. (RMH-1 and
RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer is proposing to provide fencing along the property lines adjacent to the RMH-3
properties.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 11 of 14

12. Floodplain: No mobile home or manufactured home subdivision, mobile home or RV park
which is proposed to be constructed below the 100-year floodplain elevation of the
Humboldt River and other drainage as defined by the U.S. army corps of engineers, shall
be approved by the planning commission.

The proposed mobile home park is not within a designated flood hazard area.

13. Grading, Erosion Protections; Avoidance Of Visual Scars On Hillsides; Protection Of
Underground Utility Lines: Whenever it may be necessary for the developer of a mobile
home, manufactured home subdivision, mobile home or RV park to cut and fill, or to alter
the contours of the land in any way, he shall comply with the provisions of the city
building code.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

14. Management: The holder of a valid city business license for the operation of a mobile
home or RV park shall be responsible for compliance with this chapter and other
applicable ordinances (e.g., section 5-1-1 of this code) or Nevada statutes and regulations.
He/she shall maintain the mobile home or RV park in a neat, orderly and sanitary
condition at all times. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

15. Signs: All signs for the mobile home or RV park, including the height, size, location,
appearance and illumination of such signs, shall be subject to approval of the planning
commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit. No signs will be installed
without approval of said sign by the planning commission. The applicant shall submit a
plan showing the locations of such signs and architectural elevations showing the heights,
shapes, size and manner of illumination of the signs. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer has proposed a location for a sign but has not provided any information
regarding the size or architectural elevations.

16. Landscaping: Exposed ground surfaces in the park shall be covered with stone, screening
or other materials or protected with a vegetative growth in a well kept manner, either of
which is capable of preventing soil erosion and eliminating objectionable dust. (RMH-1
and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

17. Plan: A copy of the final approved plan for the mobile home or RV park shall be
conspicuously posted on the site near office, or as designated by the fire department and the
license holder shall be responsible for maintenance of the park as per the final approved
plan thereafter. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

18. Space Numbering: All spaces shall be numbered, and such number shall be posted in a
place clearly visible and conspicuous from the internal street. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts
only.)



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 12 of 14

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

19. Electrical: All mobile home parks shall comply with the national electrical code, article
550, part B. All recreational vehicle parks shall comply with the national electrical code,
article 551, part B.

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code.

20. Public Telephone: At least one public telephone is required for a mobile home or RV park.

Staff feels that this requirement is dated and would not be required.

21. Dump Stations: Permitted dump stations in RV parks shall meet all applicable Nevada
statutes and regulations and city requirements.

RV’s will not be allowed in the mobile home park and therefore this section of code is not
applicable.

22. Fuel Cylinders: No extra or empty fuel cylinders are allowed to be stored on RV sites. Fuel
cylinders being used shall comply with the latest edition of NFPA 58 (standard for the
storage and handling of liquified petroleum gases).

RV’s will not be allowed in the mobile home park and therefore this section of code is not
applicable.

23. Other Requirements: Where this code does not address a particular problem, the use of the
latest edition of NFPA 501A (manufactured home installations, sites and communities),
501D (recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds) and 501C (fire safety criteria for
recreational vehicles) will be used. Wherever 501A, 501D and 501C and this code differ,
the requirements which are more stringent shall apply.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed development is not in conformance with the Land Use component of the
Master Plan.

2. The Transportation Component of the Master Plan states that concentrations of high
density residential development should be provided along a minor arterial route.

3. The proposed development is not in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan

4. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
5. The proposed use is not consistent with surrounding land uses as a transitional use

between low density in the County and medium density in the City.
6. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-5 Residential Mobile Home with

the approval of the Condition Use Permit



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 13 of 14

7. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8 and 3-2-18 of
the Elko City Code.

8. The prior approval of CUP 4-96 designated the parcel as RMH-2, mobile home
subdivision.

9. The proposed parcel had prior approval of Tentative Map 3-14 for Cedar Estates
Subdivision for an RMH-3 manufactured home subdivision.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Development Department recommends DENIAL of CUP 4-19 based on the following facts:

1. Proposed designation of RMH1 does not conform to the Master Plan.
a. Per Land Use page 17, RMH1 is considered a high-density residential use.  The

site is designated as Medium-Density Residential.  The Master Plan does not
distinguish based on number of units so whether there are 2 units or 150 units, it is
considered high-density.

b. Land Use page 24 stats that high-density residential uses should be located on
major arterials or collectors.  Access to this site is via residential local streets.
Other mobile home parks in town (Panorama and Bullion) all have direct access to
collector streets and would comply with this section of the Master Plan.

c. Transportation page 26 discusses the need to protect and enhance existing
neighborhoods by reducing regional traffic on residential local streets.  This
project, by its commercial nature, would most likely increase traffic beyond what
would occur if the property were developed at an RMH3 level.

d. Transportation page 26 also mentions that residential local streets are designed to
be pedestrian friendly.  The movement of mobile homes down these streets would
pose a danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the existing residents and
potentially interfere with their right to enjoy their property.

2. The property was designated as RMH3 with the approval of a previous Planning
Commission and Council action.  RMH3 is considered a sub-classification of zoning
and should be thought of the same way as any other Tentative Map with a Zone
Change.  The expiration of a Map does not revert the zoning back to the previous
category.

Engineering Department recommends DENIAL of CUP 4-19 based on the following facts:

1. Recommend the previously approved district of RMH-3 is maintained.

Public Works Department recommends DENIAL of CUP 4-19 based on the following facts:

1. Concerns running traffic through residential neighborhoods to a mobile home park.

If Planning Commission recommends APPROVAL of CUP 4-19 it should be TABLED until a
complete application is submitted:

The deficiencies in the application are:
1. Landscaping plan, details and information



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 14 of 14

2. All signs for the mobile home or RV park, including the height, size, location,
appearance and illumination of such signs, shall be subject to approval of the
planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit.

3. Mobile home and RV parks adjacent to residential zones shall be fenced with a
solid view screening decorative fence not more than six feet (6') nor less than three
feet (3') in height around the entire boundary of the park. However, no such fence
over three feet (3') in height shall be allowed within thirty feet (30') of the
intersection of any two (2) streets. The design and construction materials of said
fence shall be subject to approval by the planning commission prior to the issuance
of any conditional use permit.

4. The architectural design of a non-mobile home office shall be subject to approval
by the planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit.

5. The architectural design of all non-mobile home structures shall be subject to
approval by the planning commission prior to issuance of any conditional use
permit.



CUP 5-19
RMH3 TO RMH1

Planning Commission

August 6, 2019



COMPATIBLE ZONING

• Residential – Medium Density

• R (Single and Multiple Family)

• R1 (Single Family)

• R2 (Two Family)

• PUD (Planned Unit Development)

• RO (Residential Office)

• RB (Residential Business)

• RMH2 (Mobile Home Subdivision)

• RMH3 (Manufactured Home Subdivision)

• Residential – High Density

• R (Single and Multiple Family)

• R3 (Multiple Family)

• RMH1 (Mobile Home)

• PUD (Planned Unit Development)

• C (General Commercial)

City of Elko Master Plan

Land Use Page 17



LAND USE DISTRIBUTION

• Best Practice 1.3:  Work toward equitable and even distribution of housing 

types throughout the community.

• “Encourage high density residential…uses that generate significant traffic volumes 

adjacent to major arterials or collector roadways…”

City of Elko Master Plan

Land Use Page 24



GOAL

TRANSITIONAL ZONING

Commercial/Industrial/

High Density

Medium Density

Low Density



PROPOSED

TRANSITIONAL ZONING

Pocket of High Density 

between Medium Density 

and Low Density



FINDINGS

• Does NOT conform with:

• Land Use section of Master Plan

• Transportation section of Master Plan

• Transitional Zoning/Surrounding land uses



July 10, 2019

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801

RE: Parkview Mobile Home Park – CUP No. 5-19

Attn: Michelle Rambo, AICP Development Manager

Dear Michelle,

Thank you for your and the City staff’s time and efforts in reviewing our application for the Conditional
Use permit No. 519.  I have written this letter and included the attachments to address the deficiencies
noted in the application.

1) Please find attached the revised site plan showing the preliminary landscaping proposed for the
project including the fence to screen the property, landscaping and pavilion in the proposed
park, and trees included along the perimeter fence.  Also, a typical lot landscaping is shown on
the site plan.

2) Attached to this letter is the design for the proposed signage for the park.  The sign location is
also noted on the siteplan.

3) The site plan includes the plan view location of the solid view screening decorative fence.  Also,
attached to this letter is a copy of the proposed decorative fencing (vinyl) and an elevation
showing the fencing in conjunction with the proposed trees located along the perimeter of the
fence as shown in the site plan.

4) There are no non-mobile home facilities/offices planned with this project.
5) A detail of the trash enclosure is included as an attachment to this letter.  There are no other

non-mobile home structures planned with this project.

Thank you for your time and consideration.



Best regards,

Jon D. Bailey, P.E.
Bailey Homes













































































1

SITE PLAN

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

1

OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
D

B

J
D

B

- 5
-
1

3
-
1

9

- A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

S
I
T

E
 
A

N
D

 
U

T
I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

P
A

R
K

S
I
D

E
 
V

I
L
L
A

S
 
M

H
P

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I

N
EE

R

-

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.
17

9

7

9

JON D.

BAILEY

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

-

PARKSIDE VILLAS WAY (PRIVATE)

PARKSIDE CT (PRIVATE)



Agenda Item # II.A.1 

Created on 1/17/17  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

3-19, filed by John and See Lambert Trustees of the Lambert Family Trust, for a 

change in zoning from R(Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) to RO 

(Residential Office) zoning district, approximately .14 acres of property, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  August 6, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The applicant has applied for a rezone, variance and 

conditional use permit for the property to bring the property into conformance with 

its current land use. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 3-19 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated July 15, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 15, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  John and See Lambert 

10010 Fritz Lane 

Reno, NV 89521 

 

High Desert Engineering 

Mr. Bob Morley 

remorley@frontiernet.net 

 

 

 

 

mailto:remorley@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
MEMO DATE:    July 15, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 6, 2019 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  REZONE 3-19 

AGENDA ITEM:    II.A.1 

APPLICANT: John and See Lambert as Trustees of the 

Lambert Family Trust 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  603 Pine Street 

RELATED APPLICATIONS:  Var 3-19 & CUP 6-19  

     

A rezone from (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential to (RO) Residential 

Office to allow for the continuation of a professional office with approved CUP. 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts and conditions as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



REZONE 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 2 of 5 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 

PARCEL NUMBER:   001-231-009 

 

PARCEL SIZE:    6,120 sq. ft. 

 

EXISTING ZONING:   (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential  

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density 

 

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as a professional office 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

o North & Northeast: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed 

o Southwest: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed 
o Southeast: (C) Commercial / Developed 

 
PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is developed. 
• The property fronts Pine Street and 6th Street.   
• Access to the property for parking is off the alley at the rear of the parcel. 

 
MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts  
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(F) RO – Residential Office District 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. The parcel is identified as APN 001-231-009. 

2. The applicant is the property owner. 

3. The property is located north of the Pine Street and 6th Street intersection. 

4. The area of the parcel is approximately 6,120 square feet. 

5. The required off street parking for the existing business exists at the rear of the property. 

Two off-street parking for the principal use as a single family residence is also provided 

off the alley.  
6. The applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 3-19) for a reduction of the interior side 

yard setback to be reviewed by the Planning Commission in conjunction with this 
application.   

7. The applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP 6-19) for use of the 
property as a professional office. The application will be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission in conjunction with this application.   

8. The property has a Conditional Use Permit approved on September 18, 1991. It doesn’t 
appear that the CUP was issued in conformance with the code at the time as the property 



REZONE 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 3 of 5 

was zoned R- Single Family Multi-Family Residential when the CUP was approved.  The 
CUP is specific to the use as an attorney’s office for up to two attorneys. The CUP was 
recorded with the Elko County Recorder in Book 764 page 437. 

 
MASTER PLAN: 
 
Land use: 
 

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the property as Residential Medium Density. 
2. RO- Residential Office zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for 

Residential Medium Density. The proposed RO district is consistent with current RO 
uses and/or residential uses in the immediate vicinity. 

3. Objective 2:  Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to 
strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community 

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and 
for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and overall 
sustainability.  

 
The proposed zone amendment is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component 

 
Transportation: 

 
1. The property fronts Pine Street and 6th Street as well as a public access alley in the rear. 
2. Parking is established at the rear of the property off the alley. 

 
The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not create any 
significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.   

 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed district supports 
several objectives in the redevelopment plan. The most important objective being the 
continuation of economic activity in the area.  

 
The proposed zone district and continuation of the existing established business conforms to the 
redevelopment plan.  
 
ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 
 

1. The property is not located within any capture zone for City wells.   
2. Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

 
The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present a 
hazard to City wells. 
 
SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:  
 

1. The minimum lot area required is 5,000 square for areas of the community platted with 
50 foot wide lots. The parcel meets the criteria stipulated for the lot area in Section 3-2-5 
of city code.  

2. The required lot dimensions for the proposed district in this area of the community would 
be 50 feet in width by 100 feet in depth as stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 

3. The property is developed and the structure does not meet the interior side yard setback 
requirements stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 

 



REZONE 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 4 of 5 

As a result of the above referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for 
variances on the interior side yard setback under Variance application 3-19. 
 
SECTION 3-2-5 (RO) Residential Office: 
 

1. As noted in the evaluation under Section 3-2-4 the property does not conform with 
interior side yard setback requirements stipulated for the district.  

2. Variance 3-19 application has been submitted for consideration by the Planning 
Commission to address the conformance deficiency.  

 
Approval of variance application 3-19 is a required condition of the zone application to address 
identified non-conforming issues.   
 
SECTION 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations: 
 

1. There is off-street parking located in the rear of the parcel and it meets the 2 off street 

parking stalls code requirement for a principal permitted use as a single family residence. 

If the property is issued a conditional use permit to be developed as an office use, it will 

be required to provide off-street parking to be located at the rear of the property and 

accessed from the alley way in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-17(F). The 

applicant will be required to provide ADA compliant parking as part of the off-street 

parking requirement.  
 

The existing property appears to be in conformance with ECC 3-2-17. 
 
SECTION 3-2-21 Amendments: 
 

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application. 
 
SECTION 3-8 
 

1. This parcel is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 
 

FINDINGS 
 

2. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. Residential Office is a corresponding district of Residential Medium 
Density. The proposed zone district meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use 
Component of the Master Plan. 

 
3. The proposed rezone is consistent with the Transportation component of the Master Plan. 

The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not 
create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.   
 

4. The proposed zone district and continued commercial land use of the property conforms 
to the redevelopment plan.  
 

5. The proposed rezone is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The 
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present 
a hazard to City wells. 

 
6. The property does no conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. As a result of the above 

referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for variances on the interior 



REZONE 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 5 of 5 

side yard setback under Variance application 3-19. Approval of the variance application 
is required as a condition of the zone application. 

 

7. The proposed rezone is not in conformance with Section 3-2-5(R) Residential Office, a 

variance for interior side setback will be required prior to approval of the application. 

 

8. The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the principal 

permitted use as a single family residence. If the property is issued a conditional use 

permit to be developed as an office use, it will be required to provide off-street parking to 

be located at the rear of the property and accessed from the alley way. The applicant will 

be required to provide ADA compliant parking as part of the off-street parking 

requirement.  

 

9. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.  

 
10. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, or 

public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a 
danger to human health and safety. 
 

11. The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 
 
 

1. All conditions for the rezone are satisfied prior to the Mayor signing the resolution to 
rezone the property. 

2. A variance be granted for the interior side yard setback for the principle structure.  
 





























Agenda Item # II.A.2 

Created on 5/28/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 3-19, filed by John and 

See Lambert as Trustees of the Lambert Family Trust for a reduction of the 

required interior side yard setback from 10’ to 0’, for a professional office in an RO 

(Residential Office) Zoning District, and matters related thereto, FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: August 6, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The applicant has applied for a rezone, variance and 

conditional use permit for the property to bring the property into conformance with 

its current land use. The existing structure sits as close as 0’ to the property line on 

the interior side yard. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 3-19 based on the facts, 

findings and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated July 17, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 17, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  John and See Lambert 

10010 Fritz Lane 

Reno, NV 89521 

 

High Desert Engineering 

Mr. Bob Morley 

remorley@frontiernet.net 

 

 

 

 

mailto:remorley@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
REPORT DATE:    July 17, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 6, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  II.A.2 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Variance 3-19 

APPLICANT: John and See Lambert as Trustees of the 

Lambert Family Trust 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  603 Pine Street 

RELATED APPLICATIONS:  Rez 3-19 & CUP 6-19 

 

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-5, requiring minimum interior yard 

setbacks in a RO- Residential Office Zoning District.  

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7219 



VAR 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

  Page 2 of 5 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
PARCEL NUMBER:   001-231-009 

 

PARCEL SIZE:    6,120 sq. ft. 

 

EXISTING ZONING:   (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential  

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density 

 

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as a professional office 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

o North & Northeast: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed 

o Southwest: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed 
o Southeast: (C) Commercial / Developed 

 
PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is developed. 
• The property fronts Pine Street and 6th Street.   
• Access to the property for parking is off the alley at the rear of the parcel. 

 
MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 
Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans and City Code Sections are: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning District 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22  Variances 

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. The parcel is identified as APN 001-231-009. 

2. The applicant is the property owner. 

3. The property is located north of the Pine Street and 6th Street intersection. 

4. The area of the parcel is approximately 6,120 square feet. 

5. The required off street parking for the existing business exists at the rear of the property. 

Two off-street parking for the principal use as a single family residence is also provided 

off the alley.  
6. The applicant has applied for a zone amendment (REZ 3-19) from Residential to 

Residential Office to be reviewed by the Planning Commission in conjunction with this 
application.   

7. The applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP 6-19) for use of the 
property as a professional office. The application will be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission in conjunction with this application.   

8. The property has a Conditional Use Permit approved on September 18, 1991. It doesn’t 
appear that the CUP was issued in conformance with the code at the time as the property 



VAR 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

  Page 3 of 5 

was zoned R- Single Family Multi-Family Residential when the CUP was approved.  The 
CUP is specific to the use as an attorney’s office for up to two attorneys. The CUP was 
recorded with the Elko County Recorder in Book 764 page 437. 

 
MASTER PLAN - Land Use: 
 

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the property as Residential Medium Density. 
2. RO- Residential Office zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for 

Residential Medium Density. The proposed RO district is consistent with current RO 
uses and/or residential uses in the immediate vicinity. 

3. Objective 2:  Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to 
strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community 

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and 
for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and overall 
sustainability.  

 
The proposed variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component 
 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed variance supports 
several objectives in the redevelopment plan. The most important objective being the 
continuation of economic activity in the area.  

 
The proposed variance and continuation of the existing established business conforms to the 
redevelopment plan.  
 

SECTION 3-2-5 RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT: 

1. Under the property development standards for permitted principal uses: 
a. Lot Area: For existing platted subdivisions characterized by twenty five 

foot (25') wide lots and situated within a residential zoning district, any lot 
or parcel reconfiguration or resubdivision shall adhere to a minimum lot 
area of five thousand (5,000) square feet. 

b. Lot Width: 60 ft. 
c. Lot Depth: 100 ft. 
d. Front yard Setback: 15 feet 
e. Rear yard setback: 20 feet 
f. Interior side yard setback: 5 ½ feet 
g. Exterior side yard setback: 12 feet 

 
The property meets all requirements with the exception of the interior side yard setback. The 
existing interior side yard setback is 0’. 
 
Approval of Variance 3-19 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 3-19 will bring the property 
into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code.  
 
SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES: 

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include: 
 

Application Requirements 



VAR 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

  Page 4 of 5 

 
1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration, 

exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions 
applying to the property under consideration. 
 

• The applicant has stated that the building is existing and the interior side yard 
setback is less than 5’ in certain areas. 
 

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional 
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of 
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the 
property owner of reasonable use of property. 
 

• The applicant has stated that a variance will avoid the necessity to adjust property 
line boundaries with the neighboring property, which will cause additional 
problems with other properties. The structures have stood together for decades, so 
there is no change to the existing buildings on either side. The building is not 
marketable under the current circumstances, as there is no reasonable market for a 
building that can only be sold to two attorneys.  
 

• The applicant has applied for a zone change of the property to conform to the 
Master Plan and existing use of the property.  

 
• The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the fact the property is 

improperly zoned for the existing use of the property restricting the applicants 
ability to improve upon and/or transfer the property.  
 

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the 
same zoning district. 
 

• The applicant stated this problem may apply to other businesses in the area, but 
probably not to residential properties. 
 

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and 
general welfare. 
 

• The applicant stated nothing will change. Applicant’s property has been a law 
office for 28 years. The neighbors have lived next door for 42 years. 
 

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the 
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification. 
 

• The applicant stated that granting the variance will not result in a change of land 
use, but there is an application for zone change that accompanies this request. 
Applicants seek a CUP and zone change that allows for Residential Office. 
 

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.  
 

• The applicant stated that granting of the variance will not impair natural 
resources. 

 
FINDINGS 



VAR 3-19 
John and See Lambert 

  Page 5 of 5 

 
1. The variance approval is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master 

Plan. 
 

2. The property is located within the Redevelopment Area and the proposed variance and 
continuation of the existing established business conforms to the redevelopment plan.  

 
3. Approval of Variance 3-19 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 3-19 will bring the 

property into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code. 
 

4. The special circumstance is directly related to the property being improperly zoned for 

the developed use of the property. 

 

5. The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the fact the property is 

improperly zoned for the existing use of the property restricting the applicants ability to 

improve upon and/or transfer the property.  

 

6. The special circumstance does not generally apply to other properties which are within a 

properly zoned residential district with residential land uses. 

 

7. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 

properties in the vicinity. The applicant is seeking the variance to address a fully 

developed property with the use of the property as a small scale commercial use. 

 
8. The granting of the variance is directly related to an improperly zoned property and will 

not impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or 
zoning classification. 
 

9. The property is fully developed and the granting of the variance will not impair natural 
resources. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 
 

1. Approval of rezone application 3-19. 
2. No additional structures to be built between the existing building and the interior side 

property line. 
 





















 



Agenda Item # II.A.3 

Created on 3/23/2017  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 6-19, filed 

by John and See Lambert as Trustees of the Lambert Family Trust, which would allow for a 

professional office within a RO (Residential Office) Zoning District, and matters related 

thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 6, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The applicant has applied for a rezone, variance and conditional 

use permit for the property to bring the property into conformance with its current land 

use. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 6-19 based on 

the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated July 17, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff report dated July 17, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  John and See Lambert 

10010 Fritz Lane 

Reno, NV 89521 

 

High Desert Engineering 

Mr. Bob Morley 

remorley@frontiernet.net 

 

mailto:remorley@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 
 

REPORT DATE:    July 17, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 6, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  II.A.3 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  CUP 6-19 

APPLICANT: John and See Lambert as Trustees of the 

Lambert Family Trust 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  603 Pine Street 

RELATED APPLICATIONS:  Rez 3-19 & Var 3-19 

     

A conditional use permit for the development of a professional office within an (RO) 

Residential Office zoned property. 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts and conditions as stated in this report. 

 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 6-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 2 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 

PARCEL NUMBER:   001-231-009 

 

PARCEL SIZE:    6,120 sq. ft. 

 

EXISTING ZONING:   (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential  

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density 

 

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as a professional office 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

o North & Northeast: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed 

o Southwest: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed 
o Southeast: (C) Commercial / Developed 

 
PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is developed. 
• The property fronts Pine Street and 6th Street.   
• Access to the property for parking is off the alley at the rear of the parcel. 

 
MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts  
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(F) RO – Residential Office District 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. The parcel is identified as APN 001-231-009. 

2. The applicant is the property owner. 

3. The property is located north of the Pine Street and 6th Street intersection. 

4. The area of the parcel is approximately 6,120 square feet. 

5. The required off street parking for the existing business exists at the rear of the property. 

Two off-street parking for the principal use as a single family residence is also provided 

off the alley.  
6. The applicant has applied for a zone amendment (REZ 3-19) from Residential to 

Residential Office to be reviewed by the Planning Commission in conjunction with this 
application.   

7. The applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 3-19) for interior side yard setback to be 



CUP 6-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 3 of 7 

reviewed by the Planning Commission in conjunction with this application.   
8. The property has a Conditional Use Permit approved on September 18, 1991. It doesn’t 

appear that the CUP was issued in conformance with the code at the time as the property 
was zoned R- Single Family Multi-Family Residential when the CUP was approved.  The 
CUP is specific to the use as an attorney’s office for up to two attorneys. The CUP was 
recorded with the Elko County Recorder in Book 764 page 437. 

 
MASTER PLAN: 
 
Land use: 

 
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the property as Residential Medium Density. 
2. RO- Residential Office zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for 

Residential Medium Density. The proposed RO district is consistent with current RO 
uses and/or residential uses in the immediate vicinity. 

3. Objective 2:  Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to 
strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community 

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and 
for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and overall 
sustainability.  

 
The proposed conditional use under the conditionally approved Residential Office district is 
consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed conditional use 
permit is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed conditional 
use permit meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

 
Transportation: 
 

1. The property fronts Pine Street and 6th Street as well as a public access alley in the rear. 
2. Parking is established at the rear of the property off the alley. 

 
The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not create any 
significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.   
 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed use supports several 
objectives in the redevelopment plan. The most important objective being the 
continuation of economic activity in the area.  

 
The proposed zone district and continuation of the existing established business conforms to the 
redevelopment plan.  
 
ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 
 

1. The property is not located within the capture zone of any City wells.   
2. Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

 
The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the RO- Residential Office zoning 
district do not present a hazard to City wells. 
 
SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 



CUP 6-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 4 of 7 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 
shall apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or 
imposed by the Planning Commission or City Council. 

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land 
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by 
reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock 
formation, extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any 
other features likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the 
community. The planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, 
shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The 
applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the 
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or 
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.” 

The proposed use of the property as a professional office requires a conditional use permit to 
conform to Section 3-2-3 of City code.   
 
SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:  
 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof 
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this 
title. 

3. The property is developed and the structure does not meet the interior side yard setback 
requirements stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 
 

As a result of the above referenced non-conformance issue, the applicant has applied for a 
variance for the interior side yard setback. Variance 3-19 will be considered by Planning 
Commission in conjunction with this application. 
 
SECTION 3-2-5 (RO) RESIDENTIAL OFFICE: 
 

1. The applicant has applied for Rezone 3-19 which will be heard in conjunction with VAR 
3-19 and CUP 6-19. 

2. As noted in the evaluation under Section 3-2-4 the property does not conform to interior 
side yard setback requirement stipulated for the zoning district.  

3. Variance 3-19 application will be heard by the Planning Commission to address the 



CUP 6-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 5 of 7 

conformance deficiencies.  
 
The proposed conditional use is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(F)(3) RO- Residential Office 
only with conditional approval of variance 3-19 and conditional approval of rezone 3-19. 
 
SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS: 
 

1. There is off-street parking located in the rear of the parcel and it meets the two off 
street parking stalls code requirement for a principal permitted use as a single family 
residence. If the property is issued a conditional use permit to be developed as an 
office use or is developed as a more intense use than single family residence, it will 
be required to provide off-street parking to be located at the rear of the property and 
accessed from the alley way in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-17(F). The 
applicant will be required to provide ADA compliant parking as part of the off-street 
parking requirement.  

 
The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the principal permitted 
use as a single family residence. As per Elko City Code 3-2-17(F), off-street parking to be 
located at the rear of the property and ingress/egress from the alley way to support the proposed 
conditional use.  
 
SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS: 
 
General Regulations: 
 

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses 
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this 
chapter, other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards 
established by the Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit 
for such uses may be issued. 

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall 
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the 
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which 
the permit was issued. 

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only 
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the 
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all 
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have 
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run 
with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, 
as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel. 
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the 
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the 
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation. 

The Conditional Use Permit previously approved on September 18, 1991 is not in conformance 
with the Elko City Code.  Under the R- Single Family Multi-family Residential Zoning District, 
small scale commercial uses are not allowed. The 1991 CUP was issued to Eric Easterly and one 
of the conditions stated that the permit shall run concurrent with this occupancy by applicant 
only.  The permit was never transferred to a new applicant with the sale of the property so it is 
questionable if the current permit is even valid. 
 



CUP 6-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 6 of 7 

The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application with the 
conditional approval of the zone amendment REZ 3-19 to RO – Residential Office zoning 
district. 
 
SECTION 3-8 
 
The parcel is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

 
FINDINGS 
 

1. The proposed conditional use under the conditionally approved Residential Office district 
is consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed conditional 
use permit is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed 
conditional use permit meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. 
 

2. The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not 
create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.   
 

3. The proposed conditional use permit and continuation of the existing business conforms 
to the Redevelopment Plan.  
 

4. The proposed conditional use is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. 
The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the RO-Residential Office 
zoning district do not present a hazard to City wells. 

 
5. The proposed use of the property requires a conditional use permit to conform to Section 

3-2-3 of City code.   
 

6. The proposed use based on conditional approval of Variance 3-19 conforms to Section 3-
2-4 of City code. 
 

7. The proposed conditional use is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(F)(3) RO- 
Residential Office based on conditional approval of variance 3-19 and conditional 
approval of rezone 3-19. 
 

8. The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the principal 
permitted use as a single family residence. As per Elko City Code 3-2-17(F), off-street 
parking to be located at the rear of the property and ingress/egress from the alley way to 
support the proposed conditional use.  

 
9. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.  

 
10. Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural 

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. 
or pose a danger to human health and safety. 
 

11. The proposed conditional use is consistent with surrounding land uses.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 
 



CUP 6-19 
John and See Lambert 

 

  Page 7 of 7 

1. CUP 6-19 shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its 
issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to 
the use for which the permit was issued. 
 

2. The CUP 6-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after  
 

3. The permit is granted to the applicant John and See Lambert as Trustees of the Lambert 
Family Trust for the use of a professional office. 
 

4. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and 
to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may 
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an 
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development 
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional 
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the 
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with 
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner. 
 

1. Conditional approval of Variance 3-19 and all conditions be met.  
 

2. Conditional approval of Rezone 3-19 and all conditions be met. 
 

 
 
 
 

 























 





Agenda Item # II.A.4 

Created on 7/26/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 7-

19, filed by Petersen Holdings, LLC., which would allow for the development of a 

facility that provides maintenance and repairs to automobiles within a C (General 

Commercial) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 6, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Petersen Holdings, LLC is proposing an additional service 

shop and parking for Big O Tires.  

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Deny or Table Conditional Use Permit 7-19 based on the 

facts and findings as presented in Staff Report dated July 25, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 25, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Petersen Holdings, LLC 

330 11th Street  

Elko, NV 89801 

 

Lana Carter 

lanalcarter@live.com 

 

 

 

mailto:lanalcarter@live.com




Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 
 

MEMO DATE:    July 25, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 6, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  II.A.4 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Conditional Use Permit 7-19 

APPLICANT:    Petersen Holdings, LLC. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 285 12th St & 1120 Railroad St. 

 

Within the C general commercial zoning district, gas stations, businesses where gasoline and 

oil are sold, including businesses with facilities for repairing or maintaining automobiles are 

required to obtain a conditional use permit.  

 

 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND DENIAL OR TABLE, subject to findings of fact as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 7-19 
Petersen Holdings, LLC 

APN: 001-363-003 & 001-363-

006 

 

  Page 2 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

PARCEL NUMBER:   001-363-003 & 001-363-006 

 

PROPERTY SIZE: 33,569 sq. ft., both parcels combined 

 

EXISTING ZONING: C -General Commercial 

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  (MU-DTWN) Mixed Use Downtown 

 

EXISTING LAND USE:   Undeveloped, previous building was demolished 

 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by developed land to the north, south, west, and east.  

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

 

The property is generally flat with no unusual conditions. 
The property will be accessed from Railroad Street and 12th Street with limited access to 
and from 12th Street. 
The property is not in the floodway and flood zone. 

 
APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-10 General Commercial (C) 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 

• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

1. The parcels are identified as APN 001-363-003 & 001-363-006. 
2. The applicant is the property owner. 
3. There is a conditionally approved parcel map (PM 4-18) administratively approved on 

July 12, 2018 which would combine the two parcels. The conditions on the approval have 
not been met and therefore the map has not been recorded. The map will expire on July 
12, 2020 if not recorded prior to that date. 

4. The property is located south of the 12th Street and Railroad Street intersection. 
5. The area of the proposed combined parcel is approximately 33,569 square feet. 



CUP 7-19 
Petersen Holdings, LLC 

APN: 001-363-003 & 001-363-

006 

 

  Page 3 of 7 

 
MASTER PLAN: 
 
Land use: 
 

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows a portion of the area as Mixed Use Downtown. 
2. Objective 2:  Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to 

strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community 
3. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and for 

major centers and corridors, to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and overall 
sustainability.  

4. Downtown Mixed Use: This land use designation includes land uses that are located in or 
close to the historic downtown area. The area will capitalize on the existing fabric of the 
downtown and its walkable grid system. Mixed-use allows for a variety of land uses, and 
configurations. Housing or office use may be located within the same structure, with retail 
use primarily on the first floor. 

 
The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The 
proposed conditional use permit is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. 
The proposed conditional use permit meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. 

 
Transportation: 

 
1. The property fronts 12th Street and Railroad Street. 
2. 12th Street is classified as a major arterial. 
3. Railroad Street is classified as a Commercial/Industrial Collector. 
4. Objective 1:  Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates vehicles, 

bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent land uses. 
5. Objective 2: Provide a backbone of arterial roadways to emphasize regional vehicle travel 

and provide adequate capacity to move large traffic volumes, including truck traffic, safely 
and efficiently. 

 
The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan. There has been discussion with staff and the developer/engineer in regards to the proposed 
use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use which some design elements have been 
addressed regarding traffic flow ingress and egress onto 12th Street. Other concerns will be listed 
as conditions or addressed with the submittal for the building and site permits.  
 
CITY OF ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

1. The property is located within the Redevelopment Area and more specifically the Central 

Business District. 

2. Redevelopment goals and objectives: 

• To promote and insure public safety and welfare; to eliminate and prevent the 

spread of blight and deterioration, and the conservation, rehabilitation and 

redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area in accord with the Master Plan, the 

Redevelopment Plan and local codes and ordinances 

• To promote and support a pedestrian oriented downtown; and, to achieve an 

environment reflecting a high level of concern for architectural, landscape, and 



CUP 7-19 
Petersen Holdings, LLC 

APN: 001-363-003 & 001-363-

006 

 

  Page 4 of 7 

urban design and land use principles appropriate for attainment of the 

objectives of the Redevelopment Plan. 

• To ensure adequate vehicular access and circulation; to retain and sustain 

existing businesses by means of redevelopment and rehabilitation activities, 

and encourage cooperation and participation of owners, businesses and public 

agencies in the revitalization of the Redevelopment Area. 

• To promote historic and cultural interest in the Redevelopment Area; and, 

encourage investment by the private sector in the development and 

redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area by eliminating impediments to such 

development and redevelopment. 

• To achieve Plan conformance and advancement through re-planning, redesign 

and the redevelopment of areas which are stagnant or improperly used. 

 

The Conditional Use Permit application doesn’t provide detail on the elevations that supports the 

goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan in terms of reflecting a high level of concern for 

architectural and urban design.  Therefore, the proposed conditional use permit is not in 

conformance with the Redevelopment Plan. 
 
ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 

 

• The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for several City wells. 

 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 

shall apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 

“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 

principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 

location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 

this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 

conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  
 
• Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is 

held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of 
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, 
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features 
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The 
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing the 
particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to 
present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she so desires, 



CUP 7-19 
Petersen Holdings, LLC 

APN: 001-363-003 & 001-363-

006 

 

  Page 5 of 7 

whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of 
unsuitability.” 

 
The proposed use is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in conformance with 

ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-10(B). 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 

in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 

uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall 

be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 
The proposed use is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4. 
 

SECTION 3-2-10 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS 
 
1. Section 3-2-10(B)(4) Gas stations. Businesses where gasoline and oil are sold, including 

businesses with facilities for repairing or maintaining automobiles must obtain a 
conditional use permit. 

2. Height Restrictions: All structures within the C general commercial zoning district must 
comply with the height and other requirements of the current city airport master plan, to 
the extent the plan applies to that location. 

3. The property does not abut a residential zone so therefore is not subject to the screen wall 
requirements set forth in subsection 3-2-3(J). 

4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code and 
conditions for the CUP. 

 
The proposed use is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-10. 

 
SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 
 

• Conformance with this section is required. The proposed facility is in conformance and 
will be evaluated further with plan submittal. 

 
The proposed use conforms to section 3-2-17 of Elko city code.   

 
SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 
 
General Regulations: 
 

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses 
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter, 
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the 
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be 
issued. 

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall 
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the 



CUP 7-19 
Petersen Holdings, LLC 

APN: 001-363-003 & 001-363-

006 

 

  Page 6 of 7 

permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which 
the permit was issued. 

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only 
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the 
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all 
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have 
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with 
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well 
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the 
property owner. 

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel. 
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the 
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the 
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation. 

 
The applicant is in conformance with 3-2-18 by submission of this application. 
 
SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 

 
1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain. 

FINDINGS 

 

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master 

Plan 

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation 

infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan. 

3. The proposed conditional use permit is not in conformance with goals and objectives 

listed in the Redevelopment Plan. 

4. The site is suitable for the proposed use. 

5. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program. 

6. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

7. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-10 (B) General Commercial with 

the approval of the Condition Use Permit 

8. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8 and 3-2-18 of 

the Elko City Code.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends DENIAL or TABLE of CUP 7-19 until a complete application is submitted: 
 
The deficiencies in the application are: 
 

1. Provide details and information on the proposed elevations on how the project will support 
the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan, specifically the high level of concern 
for architectural and urban design. 

 
2. Public Works would like to see the median curb extended to Silver Street for safety 



CUP 7-19 
Petersen Holdings, LLC 

APN: 001-363-003 & 001-363-

006 

 

  Page 7 of 7 

reasons or a pork chop style median installed at the driveway to only allow for the right in 
right out turn movements on 12th street. 

 

 















BIG O TIRES SERVICE SHOP
TIRE

STORAGE

SERVICE BAY

UTILITY AND
STORAGE BREAKROOMVEST.OFFICE LAV

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

08
-2

01
9

20
19

-1
0

LL
C

LL
C

7-
14

-1
9

1"=10'
N/A

1

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

BI
G

 O
 T

IR
ES

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
SH

O
P

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

1

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS PER CITY OF ELKO CODE 3-2-10 B. 2. a (COMMERCIAL ZONE).

a. FOR EVERY NEW CONSTRUCTION IN THE C GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT
WHICH IS OUTSIDE OF THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (CBD), MINIMUM LANDSCAPE
AREA SHALL BE PROVIDED IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) OF THE
SURFACE AREA OF THE DEVELOPED PORTION OF THE PROPERTY FOR LOT SIZES ONE
ACRE OR GREATER AND TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE SURFACE AREA OF THE
DEVELOPED PORTION OF THE PROPERTY FOR LOT SIZES SMALLER THAN ONE ACRE,
TO INCLUDE PROPERTY CONSISTING OF MULTIPLE PARCELS WHICH FORM A SINGLE
DEVELOPMENT.

DEVELOPED AREA = 33,637 S.F. AT 10% = 3,364 S.F.  ACRES OF LANDSCAPE REQUIRE FOR
COMMERCIAL ZONE.

TOTAL PROPOSED PROPOSED LANDSCAPING = 12,320 S.F.

1.  ZONING: C - COMMERCIAL
2.  APN = 001-363-003 AND 001-363-006
3.  PARCEL ADDRESS = 285 12TH STREET AND 1120 RAILROAD STREET, ELKO, NEVADA 89801
4.  LEGAL DESCRIPTION = PARCEL 4 OF FILE NO 237417 AND PARCEL 2 FILE NO 595245 IN THE

OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER.
5.  AREAS:

PARCEL 4 = 0.569 AC. OR 24,786 S.F.
PARCEL 2 = 0.203 AC. OR 8,851 S.F.

6. SET BACK:
FRONT YARD = 0 FEET

 SIDE YARD = 0 FEET
BACK YARD = 0 FEET

7.  TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY BY CHILTON ENGINEERING PERFORMED ON MARCH 12TH, 2013.

PARKING REQUIREMENTS PER CITY OF ELKO CODE 3-2-17 F.

SERVICE SHOP
5,530 S.F. @ SPACE PER 800 S.F. = 7 SPACES REQUIRED

GRAND TOTAL STANDARD SPACES REQUIRED = 7 SPACES
GRAND TOTAL STANDARD SPACES PROVIDED = 21 SPACES
TOTAL ACCESSIBLE SPACES REQUIRED = 1 SPACES
TOTAL ACCESSIBLE SPACES PROVIDED = 2 SPACES (ALL VAN
ACCESSIBLE)

7-14-19



A2.1



Agenda Item # II.A.5 

Created on 7/17/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on an amendment to Conditional 

Use Permit No. 4-19, filed by Elko County School District, which would allow for 

the expansion of the current Elko High School campus with the addition of a new 

building, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 6, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Planning Commission conditionally approved CUP 4-19 on 

June 4, 2019. Due to site drainage, the design professional has determined that the 

building needs to set back from College Avenue. The new site location reflects 

changes to the parking lot as well. Since the previous approval included a site plan 

with a different layout, the Planning Commission must approve or deny the CUP 

amendment. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff report, email from Design Professional 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve the revisions to Conditional Use 

Permit 4-19 based on the facts, findings and conditions as presented in Staff Report 

dated July 20, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 20, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Elko County School District 

Mr. Casey Kelly  

850 Elm Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

ckelly@ecsdnv.net 

 

 

 

mailto:ckelly@ecsdnv.net




Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:     July 20, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 6, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  II. A. 4 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Conditional Use Permit 4-19 

APPLICANT:    Elko County School District 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Elko High School Campus, New Science Building 

RELATED APPLICATIONS: Variance 1-19, Parcel Map 

  

An amendment to the previously approved Conditional Use Permit 4-19 for the expansion of 

the current Elko High School campus with the addition of a new building. 

  

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts, conditions as stated in this report. 

 

 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 4-19 
Elko County School District 

APN: 001-191-001 & 004 

 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

During the June 4, 2019 Public Hearing, the following codes were reviewed for CUP 4-19 initial 

application: 

 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public District 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 

• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 

The proposed amendment to the CUP 4-19 doesn’t reflect any changes to the following findings 

with the exception of the variance required in order to be in compliance with 3-2-8 PQP, Public-

Quasi, Public in Finding #7 as the building in the new location meets the setback requirements as 

set forth in 3-2-8.  

 

FINDINGS 

 

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 

Master Plan. The proposed conditional use permit meets Objectives 3 & 8 of the Land Use 

Component of the Master Plan. 

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation 

infrastructure and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.  

3. The proposed development conforms with the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment 

Plan. 

4. The site is suitable for the proposed use. 

5. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program. 

6. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

7. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-8 PQP, Public-Quasi, Public with 

the approval of the Condition Use Permit and variance 1-19 for street line setback 

reduction. 
8. Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural 

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. 
or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

9. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

10. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of 

the Elko City Code with the approval of the variance for street line setback that is 

associated with this CUP. 

 

 



CUP 4-19 
Elko County School District 

APN: 001-191-001 & 004 

 

  Page 3 of 3 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of the amendment to CUP 4-19 with the conditions as stated in 
the approval on June 4, 2019 with elimination of condition 3: 
 

1. The permit is granted to the applicant Elko County School District. 

 

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to 

the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may 

approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an 

occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development 

requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional 

use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the 

maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with 

other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner. 

 

3. A variance for the College Ave. street line setback for the principal building is required to 

be approved prior to issuing of a building permit. All conditions of VAR 1-19 to be met 

prior to occupancy of the building. 

 

4. Slope stabilization will be required on all slope areas. 

 

5. A Parcel Map for the consolidation of the two parcels be approved and recorded prior to 

issuing a building permit for the new building. 

 

6. CUP 4-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the 

commencement of the construction of the new building. 

 

 
 



Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: May 20, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: June 4, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I. A. 1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 4-19
APPLICANT: Elko County School District
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Elko High School Campus, New Science Building
RELATED APPLICATIONS: Variance 1-19, Parcel Map

A Conditional Use Permit for the expansion of the current Elko High School campus with
the addition of a new building.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts, conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-191-001 & 004

PROPERTY SIZE: 14.03 acres combined after approval and recordation
of parcel map combining the two parcels

EXISTING ZONING: PQP –Public, Quasi, Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Public

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as the Elko High School campus

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by developed land to the north, south, east and west. The
campus is currently zoned PQP, Public, Quasi-Public with R- Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential to the south.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently undeveloped on the portion of APN 001-191-004 which is
proposed for the new building.

 The property has moderate topography with slope down toward College Ave.
 The property is currently accessed from 13th Street.
 The property has frontage along College Avenue as well as 13th Street.
 The property is not in the flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public District
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 3 of 7

 The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
8 (D).

 The applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 1-19) for a reduction in the street line
setback from College Avenue for the new building.

 The applicant is preparing a parcel map to combine both parcels into one parcel. To this
date, the application has been received by the Planning Department but the map has not
been submitted by the surveyor.

 The property is located in the Redevelopment Area.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public.
2. PQP- Public, Quasi-Public is listed as a corresponding zoning district for Public in the

Master Plan Land Use.
3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public and

quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities. Uses
of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies.

4. Objective 3: Strengthen, preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hall,
and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component

Transportation

1. The Master Plan identifies College Avenue as a minor arterial.
2. The Master Plan identifies 13th Street as a Commercial/Industrial Collector.
3. The site has pedestrian access along College Avenue, 13th Street an interior network of

sidewalks from parking area to the buildings. Sidewalks are a necessary safety feature,
particularly in residential neighborhoods where children walk to and from the campus.

4. There is no proposed vehicular access from College Avenue to the new building and the
current access off 13th Street will remain as existing.  It is a safer approach having the
access not from the minor arterial.

5. The existing facility meets the goals listed in the Master Plan Transportation document as
Best Practice Objective 1; Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates
vehicle, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent
land uses.

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component
and existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 4 of 7

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed use doesn’t provide
tax increment growth but does support several goals and objectives listed in the
Redevelopment Plan.

The proposed conditional use conforms to the Redevelopment Plan.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

 The property is located in the 30-year capture zone for City wells. Development will be
required to conform to the Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

 Section 3-2-3 (C) City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in
conformance with ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-8(D).

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 5 of 7

The proposed development does not conform with this section of the code and therefore the
applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 1-19) for the street line setback requirement.

SECTION 3-2-8 PQP PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT

1. The intent of the district is to accommodate public or quasi-public institutional uses.

2. Section 3-2-8(D) The establishment, expansion or change of any use, including principal
permitted uses, shall be governed by the conditional use permit procedure, as set forth in
section 3-2-18 of this chapter.

3. Section 3-2-8(C) The total ground floor area of all buildings shall not exceed thirty five
percent (35%) of the net site area. Minimum setback from any street line is not less than
one and one-half (1 ½) times the height of the principal building. Minimum setback from
interior side and rear lot lines is not less than the height of the principal building, plus one
additional foot for each five feet (5’) or part thereof that such building exceeds thirty five
feet (35’) in the aggregate horizontal dimension of the wall generally parallel to such side
or rear lot line. Building height shall conform with requirements contained within the city
airport master plan.

4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code and
conditions for the CUP. It appears the property can be developed in conformance with the
requirements stipulated in City code with the approval of a variance.

The proposed development does not conform with the development standards of this section of
code and therefore, the applicant has requested a variance.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

 Conformance with this section is required as the property is developed.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:
1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 6 of 7

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan. The proposed conditional use permit meets Objectives 3 & 8 of the Land Use
Component of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

3. The proposed development conforms with the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment
Plan.

4. The site is suitable for the proposed use.
5. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
6. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
7. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-8 PQP, Public-Quasi, Public with

the approval of the Condition Use Permit and variance 1-19 for street line setback
reduction.

8. Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc.
or pose a danger to human health and safety.

9. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.
10. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of

the Elko City Code with the approval of the variance for street line setback that is
associated with this CUP.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 4-19 with the following conditions:



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 7 of 7

1. The permit is granted to the applicant Elko County School District.

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to
the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

3. A variance for the College Ave. street line setback for the principal building is required to
be approved prior to issuing of a building permit. All conditions of VAR 1-19 to be met
prior to occupancy of the building.

4. Slope stabilization will be required on all slope areas.

5. A Parcel Map for the consolidation of the two parcels be approved and recorded prior to
issuing a building permit for the new building.

6. CUP 4-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the
commencement of the construction of the new building.





































1

Cathy Laughlin

From: Brandon Weholt <bweholt@designwestid.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2019 11:18 AM

To: Cathy Laughlin

Subject: Elko HS Science Building

Attachments: Site 2019-06-25.pdf

Cathy, 

 

Good morning. Last week I met with the owner and our civil engineer on the site. The purpose was to look at drainage 

and pedestrian access within the site. After some investigation we determined that there is a significant amount of site 

drainage being routed though the parking lot to the north of the proposed building (2-3 acres of hardscape and roof by a 

quick estimate). That drainage, as it exists today, is intended to be routed through a buried pipe that daylights across the 

sidewalk along College Ave. and runs down the gutter to the SW. What is actually happening is some of the water takes 

that route, but much of it spills around the inlet and runs down the concrete ramp to the lower gravel lot, then finds its 

way to the sidewalk and street through the gravel lot. 

Based on all of this, plus the desire to not put a lot of subsurface water against the building on 3 sides, we determined 

that it makes the most sense to locate the building over the existing parking lot to the north. This allows us to place an 

underground detention/infiltration system at the lower lot and cover it with a paved parking lot. This will significantly 

reduced site run-off. We may still want to allow some water to leave the site, possibly just in extreme events, if allowed. 

Regardless, it would be a vast improvement over the system currently in place which is really just draining everything to 

College Ave. We would size the infiltration to accept some percentage of runoff from the future auditorium as well. That 

percentage is TBD.  

With all of this, we no longer need the variance for the street setback for the science building. We will likely come back 

with a similar variance request for the auditorium in the future. Do we need to submit a new CUP application for the 

science building since the location is changing? Any unforeseen issues you’re aware of with this change? 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Brandon Weholt, NCARB 
P: 208.888.1768  |  M: 208.699.0810 

E: bweholt@designwestid.com 

DESIGN WEST ARCHITECTS, P.A. 

 

 



FLEX LAB / CLASSROOM

SPECIAL ED.

A.P. LAB / CLASSROOM (CHEM.)

A.P. LAB / CLASSROOM (BIO.)

STOR. /

PREP.

GROW

ELEC. / DATA (BELOW STAIR)

COMMONS /

COLLABORATION

SPACE

STAIR SEATING

+/- 112

STORAGE

CHEM.

STOR.

FACULTY

ROOM

K-2005KINGSTONC_LAVATORYVITREOUS CHINA

CONF./

SMALL

GROUP

FLEX LAB / CLASSROOM

(HEALTH SCIENCE)

R.R.

ELEV.

K-2005KINGSTONC_LAVATORYVITREOUS CHINA

R.R.

CAST IRONC_SINKSWHITBYK-6710

FIRE RISER

/ MECH.

JAN.

ST.

VEST.

D
R

A
M

A
 
/

T
H

E
A

T
E

R

3
1

0

S
C

E
N

E
 
S

H
O

P
 
/

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

3
1

8

S
T

A
G

E

3
2

1

W
O

M
E

N
S

D
R

E
S

S
I
N

G

3
1

5

M
E

N
S

R
E

S
T

R
O

O
M

3
1

6

M
E

N
S

D
R

E
S

S
I
N

G

3
1

4

W
O

M
E

N
S

R
E

S
T

R
O

O
M

3
1

7

D
R

A
M

A

O
F

F
I
C

E

3
1

2

S
T

O
R

.

3
1

3

C
A

T
W

A
L
K

C
A

T
W

A
L
K

M
A

K
E

U
P

3
1

1

B
A

N
D

R
E

H
E

A
R

S
A

L

3
7

0

P
E

R
C

U
S

S
I
O

N

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

3
7

1

C
H

A
I
R

 
/
 
S

T
A

N
D

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

3
7

2

U
N

I
F

O
R

M

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

3
7

3

B
A

N
D

O
F

F
I
C

E

3
7

4

I
N

S
T

.
 
R

E
P

A
I
R

/
 
L

I
B

R
A

R
Y

3
7

5

M
E

N
S

C
H

A
N

G
I
N

G

3
4

2

W
O

M
E

N
S

C
H

A
N

G
I
N

G

3
4

1

E
N

S
E

M
B

L
E

P
R

A
C

T
I
C

E

3
8

0

P
R

A
C

T
.

3
8

3

P
R

A
C

T
.

3
8

6

P
R

A
C

T
.

3
8

5

P
R

A
C

T
.

3
8

4

M
U

S
I
C

C
O

M
M

O
N

S

3
4

0

F
A

C
U

L
T

Y

3
0

6

F
A

C
U

L
T

Y

3
8

1

P
R

A
C

T
.

3
8

2

BWeholt
Architect
FUTURE PERFORMANCE ARTS BUILDING (CONCEPTUAL PLAN SHOWN FOR REFERENCE AND SPACE PLANNING)

BWeholt
Architect
20' SETBACK

BWeholt
Architect
CURRENT STORMWATER DRAIN INLET

BWeholt
Architect
CURRENT STORMWATER DRAIN OUTLET

BWeholt
PolyLine

BWeholt
Architect
APPROX. PATH OF STORMWATER OVERFLOW

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect
APPROX. ROUTE OF SURFACE WATER, TYP.

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect

BWeholt
Architect
APPROX. ROUTE OF PIPING

BWeholt
Architect
PROPOSED PARKING W/ WATER DETENTION/INFILTRATION BELOW.



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019




























































	08-06-19 Agenda .pdf (p.1-4)
	07-02-2019 - DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.5-15)
	Item I.A.1. CUP 5-19 Bailey & Associates, LLC.pdf (p.16-78)
	Item II.A.1. Rez 3-19 Lambert.pdf (p.79-98)
	Item II.A.2. Var 3-19 Lambert.pdf (p.99-115)
	Item II.A.3. CUP 6-19 Lambert.pdf (p.116-136)
	Item II.A.4. CUP 7-19 Petersen Holdings, LLC.pdf (p.137-153)
	Item II.A.5. CUP 4-19 Amendment - ECSD.pdf (p.154-188)
	Zoning Bulletin - 06-25-19.pdf (p.189-196)
	Zoning Bulletin - 07-10-19.pdf (p.197-204)
	Zoning Bulletin - 07-25-19.pdf (p.205-212)
	County PC Agenda.pdf (p.213-217)

